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bond to the Commission in an amount 
to be specified by the Commission 
guaranteeing his or her payment of 
excise taxes. 

Subchapter 6. Liability, Insurance and 
Sovereign Immunity 

Section 7–601. Liability for Bills. The 
Shawnee Tribe and the Commission 
shall have no legal responsibility for any 
unpaid bills owed by a Liquor and/or 
Beer Outlet to a Wholesaler, supplier, or 
any other person. 

Section 7–602. Shawnee Tribe 
Liability and Credit. 

A. Liability. Unless explicitly 
authorized by Shawnee Tribe statute or 
regulation, Operators are forbidden to 
represent or give the impression to any 
supplier or person with whom he or she 
does business that he or she is an 
official representative of the Tribe, 
Commissioner or the Commission 
authorized to pledge Shawnee Tribe 
credit or financial responsibility for any 
of the expenses of his or her business 
operation. The Operator shall hold the 
Tribe harmless from all claims and 
liability of whatever nature. The 
Commission shall revoke an Operator’s 
outlet License(s) if said outlet(s) is not 
operated in a businesslike manner or if 
it does not remain financially solvent or 
does not pay its operating expenses and 
bills before they become delinquent. 

B. Insurance. The Operator shall 
maintain at his or her own expense 
adequate insurance covering liability, 
fire, theft, vandalism and other 
insurable risks. The Commission may 
establish as a condition of any License, 
the required insurance limits and any 
additional coverage deemed advisable, 
proof of which shall be filed with the 
Commission. 

Section 7–603. Sovereign Immunity. 
Nothing in this Act shall be construed 
as a waiver or a limitation of the 
sovereign immunity of the Shawnee 
Tribe or its agencies, nor their officers 
or employees. To the fullest extent 
possible, the Shawnee Tribe expressly 
retains its sovereign immunity for the 
purposes of enactment of this Act. 

Subchapter 7. Enforcement 
Section 7–701. Violations and 

Penalties. Any person who violates this 
Act or elicits, encourages, directs, or 
causes to be violated this Act, or Acts 
in support of this Act, or regulations of 
the Commission shall be guilty of an 
offense and subject to fine. Failure to 
have a current, valid or proper License 
shall not constitute a defense to an 
alleged violation of the licensing laws 
and/or regulations. 

A. Criminal Penalties. Any Indian 
person convicted of committing any 

violation of this Act shall be subject to 
punishment of up to one (1) year 
imprisonment and/or a fine not to 
exceed Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000). 
The judicial system of the Shawnee 
Tribe shall have jurisdiction over said 
proceeding(s). 

B. Civil Liability. Additionally, any 
person upon committing any violation 
of any provision of this Act may be 
subject to civil action for trespass and 
upon having been determined by the 
Shawnee Tribal Court, or appropriate 
CFR Court, to have committed said 
violation, shall be found to have 
trespassed upon the lands of the Tribe 
and shall be assessed such damages as 
the Court deems appropriate in the 
circumstances. The Court also has 
jurisdiction to enforce any fine, penalty, 
suspension, revocation or other 
enforcement action of the Commission. 
Any Commission action that was not 
timely appealed is conclusively deemed 
valid. 

C. Any person suspected or having 
violated any provision of this Act shall, 
in addition to any other penalty 
imposed hereunder, be required to 
surrender any liquor and/or beer 
products in the person’s possession to 
the officer making the complaint. The 
surrendered beverages, if previously 
unopened, shall only be returned upon 
a finding by the Shawnee Tribal Court, 
or appropriate CFR Court, after trial or 
proper judicial proceeding, that the 
individual committed no violation of 
this Act. 

D. Any Operator who violates the 
provisions set forth herein shall forfeit 
all of the remaining stock in the 
outlet(s). The Commission shall be 
empowered to seize forfeited products. 

E. Any stock, goods or other items 
subject to this Act that have not been 
registered, licensed or taxes paid shall 
be contraband and subject to immediate 
confiscation by the Commission or his/ 
her employees or agents; provided that 
within fifteen (15) calendar days of the 
seizure the Commission shall cause to 
be filed an action against such property 
alleging the reason for the seizure or 
confiscation and upon proof, the 
Shawnee Tribal Court, or appropriate 
CFR Court, shall order the property 
forfeited and vested with the Tribe. 

SECTION TWO. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
This Act shall become effective on the 
date upon which, after having been 
certified by the Secretary of the Interior, 
it is published in the Federal Register. 
[FR Doc. 2019–20116 Filed 9–12–19; 4:15 pm] 

BILLING CODE 4337–15–P 
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Renewal of Approved Information 
Collection; OMB Control No. 1004– 
0168 

AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management, 
Interior. 
ACTION: 60-Day notice and request for 
comments. 

SUMMARY: In accordance with the 
Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, the 
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) is 
proposing to renew an information 
collection with revisions. 
DATES: Please submit comments on the 
proposed information collection by 
November 15, 2019. 
ADDRESSES: Comments may be 
submitted by mail, fax, or electronic 
mail. 

Mail: U.S. Department of the Interior, 
Bureau of Land Management, 1849 C 
Street NW, Room 2134LM, Attention: 
Jean Sonneman, Washington, DC 20240. 

Fax: Jean Sonneman at 202–245– 
0050. 

Electronic mail: Jean_Sonneman@
blm.gov. 

Please indicate ‘‘Attn: 1004–0168’’ 
regardless of the form of your 
comments. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Dustin Wharton at 541–471–6659. 
Persons who use a telecommunication 
device for the deaf may call the Federal 
Relay Service at 1–800–877–8339, to 
leave a message for Mr. Wharton. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: OMB 
regulations at 5 CFR part 1320, which 
implement provisions of the PRA (44 
U.S.C. 3501–3521), require that 
interested members of the public and 
affected agencies be given an 
opportunity to comment on information 
collection and recordkeeping activities 
(see 5 CFR 1320.8(d) and 1320.12(a)). 
This notice identifies an information 
collection that the BLM plans to submit 
to OMB for approval. The PRA provides 
that an agency may not conduct or 
sponsor a collection of information 
unless it displays a currently valid OMB 
control number. Until OMB approves a 
collection of information, you are not 
obligated to respond. 

The BLM will request a 3-year term of 
approval for this information collection 
activity. Comments are invited on: (1) 
The need for the collection of 
information for the performance of the 
functions of the agency; (2) the accuracy 
of the agency’s burden estimates; (3) 
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ways to enhance the quality, utility and 
clarity of the information collection; and 
(4) ways to minimize the information 
collection burden on respondents, such 
as use of automated means of collection 
of the information. A summary of the 
public comments will accompany our 
submission of the information collection 
requests to OMB. 

Before including your address, phone 
number, email address, or other 
personal identifying information in your 
comment, you should be aware that 
your entire comment—including your 
personal identifying information—may 
be made publicly available at any time. 
While you can ask us in your comment 
to withhold your personal identifying 
information from public review, we 
cannot guarantee that we will be able to 
do so. 

The following information pertains to 
this request: 

Title: Tramroads and Logging Roads 
(43 CFR part 2810). 

OMB Control Number: 1004–0168. 
Summary: The BLM Oregon State 

Office has authority under the Oregon 
and California Revested Lands 
Sustained Yield Management Act of 
1937 (43 U.S.C. 2601 and 2602) and 
subchapter V of the Federal Land Policy 
and Management Act (43 U.S.C. 1761– 
1771) to grant rights-of-way to private 
landowners to transport their timber 
over roads controlled by the BLM. This 
information collection enables the BLM 
to calculate and collect appropriate fees 
for this use of public lands. 

Frequency of Collection: Annually, 
biannually, quarterly, or monthly, 
depending on the terms of the pertinent 
right-of-way. 

Forms: Form 2812–6, Report of Road 
Use. 

Description of Respondents: Private 
landowners who hold rights-of-way for 
the use of BLM-controlled roads in 
western Oregon. 

Estimated Annual Responses: 272. 
Hours per Response: 8. 
Estimated Annual Burden Hours: 

2,176. 
Estimated Annual Non-Hour Costs: 

None. 
An agency may not conduct or 

sponsor and a person is not required to 
respond to a collection of information 
unless it displays a currently valid OMB 
control number. The authority for this 
action is the Paperwork Reduction Act 
of 1995 (44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq.). 

Jean Sonneman, 
Information Collection Clearance Officer, 
Bureau of Land Management. 
[FR Doc. 2019–19937 Filed 9–13–19; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4310–33–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Antitrust Division 

United States v. Third Point Offshore 
Fund, Ltd., et al.: Proposed Final 
Judgment and Competitive Impact 
Statement 

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the 
Antitrust Procedures and Penalties Act, 
15 U.S.C. 16(b)–(h), that a proposed 
Final Judgment, Stipulation, and 
Competitive Impact Statement have 
been filed with the United States 
District Court for the District of 
Columbia in United States of America v. 
Third Point Offshore Fund, Ltd., et al., 
Civil Action No. 1:19–cv–02593. On 
August 28, 2019, the United States filed 
a Complaint alleging that Third Point 
Offshore Fund, Ltd., Third Point Ultra 
Ltd., Third Point Partners Qualified 
L.P., and Third Point LLC violated the 
notice and waiting period requirements 
of the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust 
Improvements Act of 1976, 15 U.S.C. 
18a (‘‘HSR Act’’), with respect to their 
acquisition of voting securities of 
DowDuPont Inc. The proposed Final 
Judgment, filed at the same time as the 
Complaint, requires the defendants to 
pay a civil penalty of $609,810 and be 
subject to an injunction prohibiting the 
defendants from undertaking similar 
acquisitions without complying with 
notification and waiting period 
requirements of the HSR Act. 

Copies of the Complaint, proposed 
Final Judgment, and Competitive Impact 
Statement are available for inspection 
on the Antitrust Division’s website at 
http://www.justice.gov/atr and at the 
Office of the Clerk of the United States 
District Court for the District of 
Columbia. Copies of these materials may 
be obtained from the Antitrust Division 
upon request and payment of the 
copying fee set by Department of Justice 
regulations. 

Public comment is invited within 60 
days of the date of this notice. Such 
comments, including the name of the 
submitter, and responses thereto, will be 
posted on the Antitrust Division’s 
website, filed with the Court, and, under 
certain circumstances, published in the 
Federal Register. Comments should be 
directed to Kenneth A. Libby, Special 
Attorney, United States, c/o Federal 
Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania 
Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580 

(telephone: (202)326–2694; email: 
klibby@ftc.gov). 

Patricia A. Brink, 
Director of Civil Enforcement. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT 
COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF 
COLUMBIA 

United States of America, 450 Fifth 
Street NW, Washington, DC 20530, 
Plaintiff, v. Third Point Offshore Fund, 
LTD., c/o Cayman Corporate Center, 27 
Hospital Road, George Town, Grand 
Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands, 
Third Point Ultra LTD., c/o Maples 
Corporate Services (BVI) Ltd., Kingston 
Chambers, P.O. Box 173, Road Town, 
Tortola, British Virgin Islands, Third 
Point Partners Qualified L.P., 
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange 
Street, Wilmington, Delaware 19801, 
and, Third Point LLC, 390 Park Avenue, 
19th Floor, New York, NY 10022, 
Defendants. 

Civil Action No. 1:19-cv-02593-CJN 

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES 
AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF FOR 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE 
PREMERGER REPORTING AND 
WAITING REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
HART-SCOTT RODINO ACT 

The United States of America, 
Plaintiff, by its attorneys, acting under 
the direction of the Attorney General of 
the United States and at the request of 
the Federal Trade Commission, brings 
this civil antitrust action to obtain 
monetary relief in the form of civil 
penalties and injunctive relief against 
Defendants Third Point Offshore Fund, 
Ltd. (‘‘Third Point Offshore’’), Third 
Point Ultra Ltd. (‘‘Third Point Ultra’’), 
Third Point Partners Qualified L.P. 
(‘‘Third Point Partners’’) (collectively, 
‘‘Defendant Funds’’) and Third Point 
LLC (collectively with Defendant Funds, 
‘‘Defendants’’). Plaintiff alleges as 
follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. The Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust 
Improvements Act of 1976, 15 U.S.C. § 
18a (‘‘HSR Act’’ or ‘‘Act’’) is an essential 
part of modern antitrust enforcement. It 
requires the buyer and the seller of 
voting securities or assets in excess of a 
certain value to notify the Department of 
Justice and the Federal Trade 
Commission and to observe a waiting 
period prior to consummating the 
acquisition. This waiting period 
provides the federal antitrust agencies 
with an opportunity to investigate and 
to seek an injunction to prevent the 
consummation of acquisitions that are 
likely to be anticompetitive. 
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